Form No. 10-300 A0 18
(ReV:

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS

TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS

EINAME .
HISTORIC s

Lynnville Mill and Dam

AND/OR COMMON
Lynnville Roller Mills and Dam

LOCATION

STREET & NUMBER

East Street —NOT FOR PUBLICATION
CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Lynnville — VICINITY OF Four
STATE CODE COUNTY CODE
_Iowa 19 Jasper 20
CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT —PUBLIC —Joccupiep —AGRICULTURE ~ _MUSEUM
N _BUILDING(S) XPRIVATE —_UNOCCUPIED X COMMERCIAL —PARK
M STRUCTURE —BOTH — WORK IN PROGRESS —EDUCATIONAL  __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT  __RELIGIOUS
__OBJECT XIN PROCESS X_YES: RESTRICTED —GOVERNMENT  __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED —YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION
—No —MILITARY _OTHER:
OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME
W.H. Wagaman
STREET & NUMBER ‘
South Street
CITY. TOWN STATE
Iyvnnville — VICINITY OF Towa
1
i LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION
COURTHOUSE.

REGISTRY OF DEEDS.ETC. hrFice of Recorder of Deeds, Jasper County Courthouse

STREET & NUMBER

CITY, TOWN STATE
Newton Towa
EI REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE
DATE

—FEDERAL

—STATE _COUNTY

—LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN

STATE




DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD __RUINS XALTERED _MOVED ~ DATE
X Fam __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The 01d Mill is a simple, three-story frame, gable-roofed structure. Its
tin}ber based frame, with pe_gged mortice and tenon joints, is covered in
white painted drop siding with red. trim.

The original portion measures 36' x 50' exclusive of later additions. To the

north of the main block is the lean-to wheel house, approximately 20' square;

this area houses the metal turbines. On the south side of the building, there
are doors on each of the three levels used for access to and ventilation

for the respective levels. Originally, the first floor contained the

milling operation and the uppeylevels were used for storage.

From 1848 to 1919, water power at the mill was provided by means of a
wooden dam. A wooden paddlewheel was used from 1848 to 1868, at which time
a Leffel metal hydraulic turbine was installed in its place. In 1919, a
concrete dam was constructed, a new turbine added, and a wheel house built
to enclose both the 1868 turbine and the new one. In 1958, the mill was
converted to electric power. Of the old machinery, only the two turbines
remainv in the pits. More recently, the Jasper County Conservation
Board has begun measures to restore the wheelhouse of the old mill to its
original operating condition. According to recent cammunication with
James ILeffel and Co., turbine manufacturers, the 1868 model is believed
the oldest operating turbine in the world.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
In the early days of Iowa history, the milling industry played a vital part
in establishing and maintaining the propserity of many farmers and communi-
ties. Iowa pioneers relied heavily upon their mills to process their increas-
ing harvests of wheat into readily usable or saleable form. In this respect,
the 01d Mill at Lynnville was no exception. Its operation, with few, if any,
interruptions, since 1848, reflects its enduring importance in the life of
Jasper County. Even the alterations performed over the years are testimony
to local interest in the continued functioning of the mill, and of the
evolving character of the milling industry in Iowa. This structure deserves
protection and preservation as a valuable illustration of the development of
a local industry to meet the needs of generations of Iowans.

As the first mill in Jasper County, John Sparks' mill received immediate and
extensive business. Settlers came from many miles around, bringing their
wheat to be ground, and at the same time perhaps doing other business in the
small commnity now known as Lynnville. Over the years, the mill retained its
early profitability and usefulness. Responding to improvements in milling
. technology, brothers Joseph and Nathan Arnold (whose family owned the mill
 from 1852 to 1871),in 1868 installed a vertical drive hydraulic turbine,
which enabled heretofore seasonal operations to continue year-round.

In 1898, after a series of owners following the Arnolds had allowed much of the
facility to fall into disrepair, W.K. Wagaman introduced "more modern flouring .
machinery". His son, Fred, further modernized the mill in 1918-19, through

the installment of a concrete dam, an additional turbine and a wheel house. In
1925, milling at Lynnville took on a new aspect, as Fred Wagaman abandoned the
now unprofitable grin ing of wheat, to concentrate on the production of animal
feed, corn meal, and electricity on a commercial basis.

The 01d Mill, completely electrified since 1958, is still operated by the -
Wagaman family. Much of the original character of the mill has remained, now
enhanced by local efforts to restore the wheel house to its early form.
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Alterations/Additions

1868: Leffell turbine installed

ca. 1900: original flouring apparatus replaced with "more modern'" flouring

equipment

1900: auxiliary steam engine installed

1918-19: wooden dam (washed out in 1918) replaced with a concrete structure.

Concrete also used for flumes. A wooden wheel house erected over
wheel and turbines. Trump turbine installed.

1925: operation changed from flouring to feed grinding. Elevator installed probably

at this time. A 2300-volt generator added.

1958: all machinery except the turbines removed, and replaced with electric

generators.

Today: Trump turbine is still in its well; the Leffell turbine is located at
the south end of the footbridge across the river. A variety of wheels,
shafts, gears, etc., have been assembled for display purposes. These
are not from the original grinding operations, so far as is known. The
County Conservation Commission is restoring the wheel house to its
original, operating condition
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